
    ANNUAL REPORT F.Y. 2022-23 

EPACK DURABLE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as EPACK Durable Private Limited and EPACK Durables Solutions Private Limited) 

Registered office: 

61-B, Udyog Vihar, Surajpur, Kasna Road Greater Noida,

Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh- 201306

Email: investors_ed@epack.in   

Telephone: +91 120 256 9078    

Visit at: www.epackdurable.com 

mailto:investors_ed@epack.in
http://www.epackdurable.com/


Mr. Bajrang Bothra Chairman & Whole Time Director 
Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Managing Director & CEO 
Mr. Sanjay Singhania Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Nikhil Mohta Nominee Director 

Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh Nominee Director 

Mr. Jyotin Mehta Independent Director 

Mr. Krishnamachari Narsimhachari Independent Director 

Mr. Kailash Chandra Jain Independent Director 

Ms. Priyanka Gulati Independent Director 

Mr. Sameer Bhargava Independent Director 

Mr. Shashank Agarwal Independent Director 

Mr. Bajrang Bothra Chairman & Whole Time Director 

Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Managing Director & CEO 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Mittal Chief Financial Officer 

Ms. Esha Gupta Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

    STATUTORY 
      AUDITORS M/S. DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

 
Axis Bank Limited 

HDFC Bank Limited 
IDFC First Bank Limited 

SBM Bank (India) Limited 

Yes Bank Limited 
Citi Bank N.A. 

ICICI Bank Limited 
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 

KMPs 

BOARD 
MEMBERS 

BANKERS 



CONTENT 1. Notice of 4th Annual General Meeting

2. Directors’ Report

• Annexure I    Dividend Distribution Policy

• Annexure II  Annual Report on Corporate

Social   Responsibility Activities 

• Annexure III   Secretarial Audit Report (Form

No. MR-3) 

• Annexure IV Information on conservation of energy,

technology absorption and foreign 

exchange earnings and outgo 

3. Annual Financial Statement (Standalone &

Consolidated) including:

✓ Statutory Auditor’s Report

✓ Balance sheet

✓ Cash Flow Statement

✓ Notes to Accounts



EPACK DURABLE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as EPACK Durable Private Limited and EPACK Durables Solutions Private Limited) 

CIN:U74999UP2019PLC116048 
Regd. Office: 61-B, Udyog Vihar, Surajpur, Kasna Road, Greater Noida, 

Gautam Buddha Nagar U.P. 201306 
E-mail: investors ed@epack,jn. Website: www.epackdurabie.com

Notice of Annual General Meeting 

NOTICE is hereby given that 4th (Fourth) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (the "AGM") of the members of
EPACK Durable Limited ("the Company'1 will be held on Saturday, the 30th day of September, 2023 at
11:00 AM. through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means ("VC/OAVM") facility deemed to be
held at the registered office of the Company at 61-B, Udyog Vihar, Surajpur, Kasna Road, Greater Noida, 
Gautam Buddha Nagar U.P. 201306, in compliance with General Circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs to transact the following businesses mentioned below: 

A. Ordinary Businesses:

Item No.1. Adoption of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon

Item No.2. Adoption of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2 023, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

Item No. 3. Appointment of Mr. Ajay DD Singhania as a Director liable to retire by rotation

To re-appoint Mr. Ajay DD Singhania, (Director Identification Number: 00107555) who retires by rotation
in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, seeks re-appointment as a
Director of the Company, who shall continue as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, to the extent that he is required to retire by rotation.

B. Special Business

Item No. 4. Ratification of remuneration to be paid to M/s. Cheena & Associates, Cost
Accountants, Cost Auditors of the Company

Members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, with or without
modification(s), as Ordinary Resolutions:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s.
Cheena & Associates, Cost Accountants, Cost Auditors of Rs. 65,000/- (Rupees Sixty Five Thousand Only)
per annum plus GST as applicable and out of pocket expenses, to conduct the audit of cost records of the
Company for the financial year ending 31•t March, 2024, as approved by the Board of Directors, be and is
hereby ratified."

Date: September 6, 2023
Place: Greater N oida 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For EPACK Durable Limited 
For���ck Durable L1111ll1::d 

�'rt:-
Esha Gup!tomoany SecretaryCompany Secretary 
M. No. A23608



NOTES: 

l. In view of COVID-19 pandemic and pursuant to Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020,
Circular No.17 /2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA
Circulars") followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, and subsequent circulars
issued in this regard the latest being 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 by the MCA ("MCA
Circulars"), 4th AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which
does not require physical presence of members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the
4th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. Members can attend and participate in
the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Members are requested to notify changes (if any, in their address, email id., nominations etc.)
in their address if any to the Company.

3. Notice of the AGM and the annual report for the Financial Year 2022-23 are being sent
electronically to the Members whose email ids are registered with the Company or the
Registrar and Transfer Agent ("RTA") unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of 
the same.

4. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM facility,
physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

5. Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, the route map is not annexed
to this Notice.

6. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM facility shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under section 103 of Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act").

7. In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

8. In terms of the provisions of Section 113 of the Act read with the said Circulars, Corporate
Members are entitled to appoint their authorized representatives via resolution to attend the
AGM through VC on their behalf and participate there, including cast votes by electronic
means. The said resolution shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered email
a�dress to investors ed@epackjn.

9. The proceedings of the meeting will be recorded as required under Companies Act, 2013 read
with rules made and circulars issued thereunder. The Company shall maintain a recorded
transcript of the meeting in safe custody.

10. The Company has been maintaining, inter alia, the following statutory registers at its
registered office at 61-B, Udyog Vihar, Surajpur, Kasna Road Greater Noida, Gautam Buddha
Nagar UP 201306:

i) Register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested under section
189 of the Act.

ii) Register of directors and key managerial personnel and their shareholding under
section 170 of the Act.

11. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, the said registers will be made accessible for inspection
through electronic mode and shall remain open and be accessible to any member upon 
request upto the conclusion of the meeting.



12. Members who need technical assistance before or during the AGM can contact
at jnyestors ed@epack jn or call at helpline number 0120-2569078

13. The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors
have considered and resolved that Special Business items are unavoidable in nature.

14. As per the article no. 5.3.2. of Part B of Articles of Association of the Company, all voting at any
Shareholders' meeting shall be by way of show of hands unless poll is demanded as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.



Instructions for attending/joining the AGM: 

Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM by following procedure: 

1. The link for AGM will be made available on the Email Id of the shareholders as registered with
the company/ Depository Participant. Enter the login credentials i.e. User ID and password
mentioned in your email. After entering the details appropriately, click on LOGIN.

2. Members are advised that facility of joining the AGM through VC shall be kept open 15 minutes

before the time scheduled for the AGM and shall not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after
scheduled time. The video-conference shall allow for two-way teleconferencing for the ease of 
participation of the members and the participants.

3. Members are requested to cast their vote by a show of hands in the meeting unless demand for
poll is made by any Member or Chairman.

4. Members are encouraged to join the meeting through Laptops/Desktops for better experience.

5. Further, members will be required to allow camera, if any, and hence use internet with a good
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. While all efforts will be made to make the VC/OAVM meeting smooth, participants connecting
through mobile devices, tablets, laptops, etc. may, at times, experience audio/video loss due to 
fluctuation in their respective networks. Use of a stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection can mitigate
some of the technical glitches.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), the following explanatory statement 
sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under item no. 4 of the accompanying 
notice. 

ITEMN0.4 

The Company is required to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a cost accountant in 
practice under Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014 ("the Rules"). The Board has approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s 
Cheena & Associates, Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the 
financial year 2023-24. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to 
be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for 
passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 4 of the notice for ratification of the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2024. The Board 
recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at item no. 4 of the notice for approval by the 
members. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") or relatives of Directors and KMPs is 
concerned or interested in the Resolution set out at item no. 4 of the accompanying notice, either 
financially or otherwise. 

Date: September 6, 2023 
Place: Greater Noida 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For EPACK Durable Limited 

For Epack Durable Limited

�Tl Company Secretary
Esha Gupta 

Company Secretary 
M. No. A23608
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ABOUT THE COMPANY 

Your Company is the fastest growing room air conditioner (“RAC”) original design manufacturers 
(“ODM”) based on growth in volume manufactured between Fiscals 2020 and 2023 in India 
(Source: F&S Report). Further, your Company is the second largest ODM manufacturer in the 
Indian room air conditioner manufacturing market, with a market share of 29% in terms of 
volume manufactured in Fiscal 2023 (this does not include the units which are imported as kits 
and gas filling is done in India) (Source: F&S Report). 

Your Company is a customer-centric business driven by a focus on continuing innovation and 
operational efficiency. Since 2003, your Company has been on a journey of evolution, where it 
initially started as an Original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) for RAC brands. Driven by focus 
on product development and innovation, your Company evolved into an ODM partner for RACs 
for its customers. Your Company also identified the opportunity to increase its value addition in 
its offerings to customers, and accordingly, started manufacturing of various components such as 
sheet metal, injection moulded, cross flow fans and PCBA components which are actively used in 
the manufacturing of RACs. In parallel, your Company capitalised on its existing manufacturing 
infrastructure to strategically expand its operations in the small domestic appliances (“SDA”) 
market, particularly considering the seasonality of the demand for RACs, and currently design 
and manufacture induction cooktops, mixer-grinders, and water dispensers. This evidences your 
Company’s continued focus on the backward integration of its operations and diversification of 
its revenue streams.  

Your Company’s product portfolio currently comprises the following: 

- Room air conditioners: Your Company design and manufacture complete RACs, comprising (i)
window air conditioners (“WACs”), including window inverter air conditioners, (ii) indoor
units (“IDUs”) and (iii) outdoor units (“ODUs”, which combined with IDUs form split air
conditioners (“SACs”)) with specifications ranging from 0.75 ton to 2 ton, across a range of
energy ratings and types of refrigerants. Your Company also manufacture split inverter air
conditioners.

- Small domestic appliances: Your Company currently design and manufacture induction
cooktops, mixer-grinders, and water dispensers.

- Components: Your Company manufacture heat exchangers, cross flow fans, axial fans, sheet
metal press parts, injection moulded components, copper fabricated products, Printed circuit
board assembly (PCBA), universal motors and induction coils for captive consumption as well 
as part of its product offerings to its customers.

Your Company’s offerings showcase its ability to provide a wide range of product solutions and 
components across the RAC value chain. 

Your Company has dedicated R&D centres in Greater Noida, Bhiwadi and Dehradun, which are 
equipped with various equipment such as endurance test labs for RACs and SDAs, induction coil 
- automatic voltage tester, induction coil – breakdown tester, needle flame tester, customized
glow wire tester. Your Company’s R&D centre in Dehradun has received its ISO/ IEC 17025:2017
accreditation from NABL for the ‘general requirements for the competence of testing &
calibration laboratories’ in the field of testing. From Fiscal 2021 to Fiscal 2023, the number of
employees in R&D department has grown from 30 employees at a CAGR of 25.17% to 47
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employees as of March 31, 2023. Your Company’s R&D activities focus on basic research, the 
development of new products and manufacturing methods, the optimisation of existing products 
and manufacturing methods and process improvements, as well as environmental protection and 
energy efficiency.  

Your Company commenced its operations with a single manufacturing unit in Dehradun, 
Uttarakhand in 2003, and have since expanded manufacturing operations in Dehradun, 
Uttarakhand and Bhiwadi, Rajasthan. Your Company has an aggregate installed annual 
manufacturing capacity as on March 31, 2023 to manufacture  

(i) 0.90 million IDUs, 0.66 million ODUs, 0.36 million ODU Kits and 0.42 million WACs, 
and  

(ii) 0.11 million water dispensers, 1.2 million induction cook-tops and 0.30 million 
mixer grinders, and components thereof.  

Your Company is also in the process of setting up a manufacturing facility at Sri City, Andhra 
Pradesh. 

Your Company’s two vertically integrated manufacturing facilities, enable it to maintain its 
operational costs and logistics management. Your Company benefit from single site 
manufacturing capabilities, where the manufacturing of components and product assembly takes 
place in one location. Your Company has the highest amount of backward integration for RACs 
under a single company / single site, that has been grown within the same company organically 
in India (Source: F&S Report). Moreover, given the manufacturing infrastructure that your 
Company had in place for manufacturing of RACs, your Company was in a position to leverage its 
extant manufacturing capabilities for SDA products as well, thus saving from incurring potentially 
high capital expenditure that is typically associated with product portfolio diversification 
strategies.  

Your Company has established long-standing relationships with various established customers 
and its customers include four of the top six RAC brands in the Indian market (in terms of RAC 
sales in Fiscal 2023 in India) (Source: F&S Report).  
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Dear Members, 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 4th Annual Report on the business and operations 
of your Company along with the audited standalone financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2023. The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiary and associate 
has been referred to wherever required. 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY /PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (STANDALONE &
CONSOLIDATED)
The Company’s financial results are as under:

2. OVERVIEW AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
With the expected positive momentum in the Indian economy, your Company is focused on
growth and achieving profitability along with a renewed commitment to customer service.
Innovations, investment and positive modifications are expected in the near future, boosting your 
Company's revenue. Together with forward looking strategy, your Company is also focusing

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Standalone Consolidated 

For the financial year ended For the financial year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Revenue from Operations 1,51 ,976.00 91,616.03 1,53,883.15 92,416.22 

Other Income 164.75 351 .39 142.12 317.83 
Total Income 1,52,140.75 91,967.42 1,54,025.27 92,734.05 
Profit/Loss Before Depreciation, Finance 
Costs, Exceptional items and Tax 
Expenses 

9,648.79 6,856.24 10,394.54 7,198.18 

Less: Depreciation & Amortisation 
Expenses  

2,172.57 1,314.04 2,607.72 1,629.67 

Profit/Loss Before Finance Costs, 
Exceptional items and Tax Expenses 

7,476.22 5,542.20 7,786.82 5,568.51 

Less: Financial Costs 3,122.65 2,887.75 3,145.99 2,938.32 
Profit/Loss Before Exceptional items and 
Tax Expenses 

4,353.57 2,654.45 4,640.83 2,630.19 

Add/(less): Exceptional items (154.95) - (154.95) - 
Share of profit/(loss) of associate - - (81.15) - 
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 4,198.62 2,654.45 4,404.73 2,630.19 
Less: Taxes (Current & Deferred) 1,147.84 846.92 1,207.49 886.78 
Profit after Tax (PAT) 3,050.78 1,807.53 3,197.24 1,743.41 
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss 3,032.57 1,796.72 3,175.32 1,734.88 
Earnings Per Equity Share (₹) 
Basic 4.49 3.60 4.71 3.47 
Diluted 4.44 3.60 4.64 3.47 
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extensively on expanding the business and operational improvements through various strategic 
projects for operational excellence. 

This year has been a significant year from the growth perspective of the Company. Your Company 
has been converted into a public limited company pursuant to a resolution passed by the 
Shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 13, 2023 and a 
fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion from a private limited company to 
a public limited company was issued by the Registrar of Companies (ROC) on June 28, 2023 in the 
name of “EPACK Durable Limited”. 

3. DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors have not recommended any Dividend for the financial year 2022 – 2023. 

The Board of Directors of your Company had approved and adopted the Dividend Distribution 
Policy containing all the necessary details as required by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Listing 
Regulations”) at Board meeting held on August 7, 2023. The said policy forms part of Annual 
Report as ANNEXURE-I and is also available on the website at www.epackdurable.com  

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
The provision of the Companies Act, 2013 does not mandate any transfer of profits to General 
Reserve. Hence, Your Company has not transferred any amount to general reserve out of the 
profits of the year. 

5. SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
a. Authorised Capital 

 
The Company at Extra-Ordinary General Meeting dated August 12, 2022 increased the 
Authorised Capital of the Company from Rs. 90,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ninety Crore 
only) consisting of 7,00,00,000 (Seven Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten 
only) each and 2,00,00,000 (Two Crore) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten 
only) each, to Rs. 101,10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Hundred One Crore Ten Lakh only) 
consisting of 7,00,00,000 (Seven Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) 
each, 2,00,00,000 (Two Crore) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each 
and 1,11,00,000 (One Crore Eleven Lakh) Series A Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian 
Rupees Ten only) each. 
 
Further, after the close of financial year, at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 
13, 2023, the authorized share capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 
101,10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Hundred One Crore Ten Lakh only) consisting of 
7,00,00,000 (Seven Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, 2,00,00,000 
(Two Crore) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each and 1,11,00,000 
(One Crore Eleven Lakh) Series A Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) to 
Rs. 1,36,10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Hundred Thirty-Six Crore and Ten Lakh only) 
divided into 10,50,00,000 (Ten Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) 
each, 2,00,00,000 (Two Crore) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each 
and 1,11,00,000 (One Crore Eleven Lakh) Series A Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Indian 
Rupees Ten only) each.  

 
 
 

http://www.epackdurable.com/
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b. Employee Stock Option Plan 
 

Your Company has adopted the EPACK Employee Stock Option Scheme 2023 (“ESOP 
Scheme”) pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board on July 13, 2023, and by Shareholders 
on July 29, 2023. The objective of the ESOP Scheme is (i) to create a sense of ownership among 
employees and incentivise long term focus, (ii) to motivate and retain talent within the 
organization; and (iii) to reward key employees for their performance. The aggregate number 
of Equity Shares which may be issued under the ESOP Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the paid-
up capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023. The ESOP Scheme is in compliance with the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021. 
  
Pursuant to the ESOP Scheme, Your Company has granted 983,863 options to the eligible 
employees during Fiscal 2024. The following table sets forth the particulars of the ESOP 
Scheme as on the date of this Report:  

 
Particulars Details of the ESOP Scheme 

 From April 1, 2023 until the date of this Report 
Options granted 983,863 
Options exercised Nil 

Exercise price of the options 
in (₹)  

152.00 

Options vested (including 
options that have been 
exercised) 

Nil 

Options 
forfeited/lapsed/cancelled 

Nil 

Total number of Equity 
Shares that would arise as a 
result of full exercise of 
options granted (net of 
forfeited / lapsed / cancelled 
options) 

983,863 

Total number of options 
outstanding in force  

983,863 

Variation in terms of options None 
Money realized by exercise 
of options 

Not applicable 

Employee wise details of 
options granted to: 

 

(i) Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior 
Management 

 
 
  

 
Name of 

employee 
Number of 

options granted 
Rajesh Kumar 

Mittal 
188,178 

Esha Gupta 14,113 
  

(ii) Any other employee who 
receives a grant in any 
one year of options 
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amounting to 5% or 
more of the options 
granted during the year  

 
  

Name of 
employee 

Number of 
options granted 
in Fiscal 2024 

Rajesh Kumar 
Mittal  

188,178 

Mohammad 
Lateef 

Choudhary 

188,178 

 

iii) Identified employees 
who were granted 
options during any one 
year equal to or 
exceeding 1% of the 
issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants 
and conversions) of the 
Company at the time of 
grant 

None 

Diluted earnings per share on 
a pre-Offer basis pursuant to 
the issue of Equity Shares on 
exercise of options calculated 
in accordance with IND AS 33 
‘Earnings Per Share’ 

Not applicable, since grants have been made in the 
current financial year. 

Difference between 
employee compensation cost 
calculated using the intrinsic 
value of stock options and the 
employee compensation cost 
that shall have been 
recognized if the Company 
had used fair value of options 
and impact of this difference 
on profits and EPS of the 
Company  

Not applicable, since no financial statements have been 
prepared since the date of grant. 

Description of the pricing 
formula and the method and 
significant assumptions used 
to estimate the fair value of 
options granted during the 
year including, weighted 
average information, namely, 
risk-free interest rate, 
expected life, expected 
volatility, expected 
dividends, and the price of 
the underlying share in the 
market at the time of grant of 
option 

Black-Scholes Formula 
 

Particulars Tranche 
1 

Tranche 
2 

Tranche 
3 

Tranche 
4 

Valuation date / 
Grant date 

August 1, 
2023 

August 1, 
2023 

August 1, 
2023 

August 1, 
2023 

Volatility(s) 38.23% 38.23% 38.23% 38.23% 
Risk-free Rate 7.16% 7.16% 7.16% 7.16% 
Time to 
expiration (T) 

4.50 5.00 5.50 6.00 

 
 

Impact on the profits and on 
the Earnings Per Share of the 
last three years if the 

Not applicable 
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c. Conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares 

During the year under review, your Company has not converted compulsorily convertible 
preference share into equity shares. 
 
Also, during the period under review, your Company has not bought back any of its securities 
/ has not issued any sweat equity shares / has not Issued any Bonus shares, except as stated 
above has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to its employees, and has not issued any 
equity shares with differential rights.  

6. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND  
During the year under review, your Company was not required to transfer any funds to Investor 
Education and Protection Funds (IEPF). 

accounting policies specified 
in the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India 
(Share Based Employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 had been 
followed, in respect of 
options granted in the last 
three years 
Intention of Key Managerial 
Personnel, Senior 
Management and whole-time 
Directors who are holders of 
Equity Shares allotted on 
exercise of options to sell 
their shares within three 
months after the listing of 
Equity Shares pursuant to the 
Offer 

No options exercised, hence not applicable 

Intention to sell Equity 
Shares arising out of the 
ESOP Scheme within three 
months after the listing of 
Equity Shares by Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel, 
Senior Management and 
employees having Equity 
Shares arising out of the 
ESOP Scheme amounting to 
more than 1% of the issued 
capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and 
conversions) 

No options exercised, hence not applicable 
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7. DEPOSITS  

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public under 
Section 73 and 76 of the Act and rules made thereunder and no amount of principal or interest 
was outstanding as at the end of Financial Year 2022-23. There were no unclaimed or unpaid 
deposits lying with your Company. 

8. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
There has been no change in the nature of business carried on by your Company or its subsidiaries 
during the year under review.  

9. CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIALS 
In compliance with provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
Accounts) Rules, 2014, Your Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements as per the 
Accounting Standards on Consolidated Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with the Auditors' 
Report thereon forms part of this Annual Report. Further, a statement containing salient features 
of the financial statements of the subsidiary Company and Associate Company is disclosed 
separately and forms part of this Annual Report. 

10. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 
a) ECPL 

EPACK Components Private Limited (“ECPL”) is a 100% Subsidiary of your Company. 
 
ECPL is engaged in the business of manufacturing sheet metal parts, copper tubing parts, 
spare parts for electronic appliances and mechanical items.  
 
ECPL reported a profit of Rs. 207.19 lakhs in F.Y. 2022-23 (previous year: Rs. 92.03 Lakhs). 

 
b.     EPAVO  

Epavo Electricals Private Limited (“Epavo”) became an Associate w.e.f. July 22, 2022, of your 
Company during the Fiscal year 2022-23 
 
Epavo is engaged in the manufacture, marketing, sales and maintenance of brushless DC 
(“BLDC”) motors, including hub BLDC motors, BLDC motors for high-volume, low-speed fans, 
and BLDC submersible pumps. 

 
Epavo reported a loss of Rs. 416.46 lakhs in F.Y. 2022-23. 

 
INVESTMENT IN EPAVO 
 
Pursuant to the agreement dated August 25, 2020 (the “Agreement”), entered into between Ram 
Ratna Wires Limited (“RRWL”) and Ennov Techno Tools Private Limited (“Ennov”), RRWL and 
Ennov agreed to jointly set up a joint venture company, Epavo Electricals Private Limited 
(“EPAVO”), engaged in the manufacture, marketing, sales and maintenance of brushless DC 
(“BLDC”) motors, including hub BLDC motors, BLDC motors for high-volume, low-speed fans, and 
BLDC submersible pumps.  
 
Pursuant to the share purchase agreement dated May 19, 2022, executed between Ennov and 
your Company, your Company purchased 1,042,600 equity shares of EPAVO from Ennov for 
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which a total consideration of Rs. 10,426,000/- was paid. Pursuant to this agreement, your 
Company acquired 26.00% of the total paid-up equity share capital of EPAVO. In connection with 
the purchase of these equity shares of EPAVO, your Company entered into the deed of adherence 
dated July 16, 2022 (the “Deed of Adherence”), with EPAVO, RRWL and Ennov. Under the Deed 
of Adherence, your Company undertook to be bound by the duties and obligations upon the 
parties to the Agreement and to assume, observe and perform the terms, covenants and 
undertakings set out in the Agreement.  
 
There were no other Companies which became or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies during the year. 
 
A statement containing the salient features of the Financial Statement of the Subsidiary and 
Associate in the prescribed format AOC-1 forms part of the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
your Company. 
 
None of the above named Subsidiary and Associate declared any Dividend during the Financial 
Year 2022-23. 

The Company’s Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries is available on the website of the 
Company and can be accessed at www.epackdurable.com 

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 
Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments made during the year in accordance with             
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the notes to the financial statements. All the 
loans, guarantees & securities are given, and investments are made for the Business purpose. 

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 
All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee. Prior omnibus approval of 
the Audit Committee is obtained which are foreseen and are repetitive in nature. Further, any 
related party transactions which are in ordinary course and at arm’s length are also placed before 
the Board for approval. 
 
During the year your Company entered into related party transactions which are in the ordinary 
course of business and are on arm’s length basis, therefore, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not 
applicable. 
 
For details on Related Party Transactions, you may refer Notes to financial statements forming 
part of the Annual Report. 

13. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY 
Except as disclosed in the Board Report, in the opinion of the Board, there have been no material 
changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of your Company which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of your Company to which the financial statements relate 
and the date of the report. 
 
Your Company converted from private to public limited company as detailed in this Report and 
is planning to go for the initial public offer and in this regard, your Company has filed its Draft 
Red Herring Prospectus dated August 11, 2023 on August 12, 2023 with Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

http://www.epackdurable.com/
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14. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
Your Company strives to ensure that best corporate governance practices are identified, adopted 
and consistently followed. Your Company believes that good governance is the basis for 
sustainable growth of the business and for enhancement of stakeholder value. A detailed report 
on corporate governance forms an integral part of Annual Report and is set out as separate 
section therein. 

15. SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION 
Your Company has filed a scheme of arrangement (the “Scheme”) under Sections 230-232 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Section 2(1B) and other 
applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, for the merger of EPACK Components Private 
Limited (“ECPL”), wholly-owned Subsidiary, into your Company, before the NCLT, Allahabad 
(“NCLT”), on May 13, 2022. It was further amended vide the revised scheme of amalgamation 
filed on December 9, 2022, which was approved by your Board on November 25, 2022. 
Subsequently, pursuant to the increase in the authorised share capital of your Company and the 
conversion of your Company into a public limited company, your Company filed a revised scheme 
of amalgamation on July 18, 2023.   
 
The Scheme was proposed with the objectives of, amongst others, (i) aligning and consolidating 
the business activities of ECPL and your Company, thereby resulting in efficient management of 
both businesses, and cost reduction, profitability, and long-term shareholder value; (ii) pooling 
the assets, proprietary information and managerial and technical resources of ECPL and your 
Company, contributing towards a stronger brand presence in the area of manufacturing 
electronic durables; and (iii) simplifying the group and management structure, leading to better 
administration and more focussed operational efforts. The appointed date for the Scheme, i.e., the 
date with effect from which the Scheme will be operative and ECPL will stand amalgamated into 
your Company, is April 1, 2022, or such other date as approved by the NCLT. With effect from the 
appointed date, the entire business of ECPL, including its assets and properties (such as its plant 
and machinery, equipment, residential and other premises, trade and service names and marks, 
patents, goodwill, etc.) shall stand transferred to your Company.  
 
The Scheme is currently pending approval by the NCLT. 

16. BOARD OF DIRECTORS, ITS COMMITTEES AND MEETINGS THEREOF 
Your Company has a professional Board with right mix of knowledge, skills and expertise with an 
optimum combination of executive, non-executive and Independent Directors including one 
woman Director. The details of Board of Directors is provided later in the Report. The Board 
provides strategic guidance and direction to your Company in achieving its business objectives 
and protecting the interest of the stakeholders. Your Board is also supported by Statutory 
Committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Risk Management 
Committee, CSR Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Executive Committee and 
I.P.O Committee of Board of Directors.  
 
Atleast one meeting of the Board of Directors is held in each quarter. Additional meetings of the 
Board/ Committees are convened as may be necessary for proper management of the business 
operations of your Company.  
 
The agenda and Notice for the Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. 
The Board of Directors of your Company met 12 (twelve) times during the Financial Year 2022-
23 on the dates as mentioned in “Corporate Governance Report” annexed hereto. 
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Details of attendance of Directors at Board Meetings of your Company held during the year under 
review are as follows:  
 

Name of the Director Category 
 

Nos. of meetings 
attended 

Mr. Bajrang Bothra Chairman and Whole-time 
Director  

7 out of 12 

Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer  

11 out of 12 

Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Non-Executive Director  5 out of 12 
Mr. Sanjay Singhania Non-Executive Director  9 out of 12 
*Mohammad Lateef Choudhary Executive Director 11 out of 12 
Mr. Nikhil Mohta Nominee Director  12 out of 12 
*Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh Nominee Director  7 out of 7 

*Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh was appointed as Nominee Director with effect from September 7, 2022 
and Mohammad Lateef Choudhary resigned from the Directorship effective from May 31, 2023 
 
The necessary quorum was present in all the meetings. The intervening gap between any two 
meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as prescribed by the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 
An update on the Board & its Committees, composition thereof, number of meetings held during 
Financial Year 2022-23 and attendance of the Directors at such meeting is provided in the Report 
on Corporate Governance. 
 
Further, considering the Company was converted into Public Company and was also going for its 
initial public offering, therefore, the Board was reconstituted to ensure compliance with the 
Companies Act, 2013, along with the rules made thereunder, each as amended, along with the 
corporate governance requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. Consequently, on July 
29, 2023, Mr. Jyotin Kantilal Mehta, Mr. Kailash Chandra Jain, Mr. Krishnamachari 
Narasimhachari, Ms. Priyanka Gulati, Mr. Sameer Bhargava, Mr. Shashank Agarwal were 
appointed as Independent Directors for a term of three years with effect from July 29, 2023.  

17. APPOINTMENT AND DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 
During the Financial Year under review, no Independent Director had been appointed on the 
Board. 
 
As on date of this report, the Board of your Company comprises of 12 (Twelve) Directors, out of 
which 10 (Ten) Directors are Non-Executive Directors and 6 (Six) out of 10 (Ten) Non-Executive 
Directors are Independent Directors. All the Independent Directors are appointed on the Board 
of your Company in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Your 
Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of your Company 
confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence under sub-section (6) of section 149 of 
the Act and Regulation 16(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Following individuals have been appointed as Independent Directors with effect from July 29, 
2023: 
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1. Mr. Jyotin Kantilal Mehta (DIN: 00033518) 
2. Mr. Krishnamachari Narasimhachari (DIN: 07409731) 
3. Mr. Kailash Chandra Jain (DIN: 08874667) 
4. Ms. Priyanka Gulati (DIN: 07087707) 
5. Mr. Sameer Bhargava (DIN: 07115063) 
6. Mr. Shashank Agarwal (DIN: 00316141) 

 
Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 
 
Pursuant to Schedule IV to the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations no meeting of Independent 
Directors was held during the year as no independent Director was on the Board of the Company 
during the Financial Year. 
 
Directors Liable to Retire by Rotation 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Act, not less than 2/3rd (Two-third) of the total number 
of Directors (other than Independent Directors) shall be liable to retire by rotation. Accordingly, 
pursuant to the Act read with Articles of Association of your Company, Mr. Bajrang Bothra 
(Chairman & Whole-time Director), Mr. Ajay DD Singhania (MD & CEO), Mr. Sanjay Singhania 
(Non-Executive Director) and Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra (Non-Executive Director) are liable to retire 
by rotation and, shall be eligible, to offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual general 
meetings of the Company. 
 
Further, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr. Bajrang Bothra, were appointed as first Directors of the 
Company on April 20, 2019 thereby have been longest in office. 
 
Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, one of the said Directors shall retire by 
rotation and be eligible for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Therefore, 
pursuant to mutual understanding between the said Directors, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania will retire 
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has offered himself for re-appointment. 

18. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
a) AUDIT COMMITTEE  

 
Your Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee in line with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, the Audit Committee was re-constituted on 
September 07, 2022 with Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh and Mr. Ajay DD Singhania as members. 
 
As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprised of 2 (Two) executive Director viz. Mr. Bajrang 
Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and 2 (Two) Non-Executive Director viz. Mr. Nikhil Mohta and Mr. 
Vibhav Niren Parikh. 
 
All members of Audit Committee are financially literate. 
 
The Audit Committee met 8 (Eight) times during the financial year 2022-23 on the dates as 
mentioned in “Corporate Governance Report” annexed hereto. 
 
Further, after the closure of financial year, the Board has re-constituted the Audit Committee on 
July 29, 2023 in accordance with the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
provisions with Mr. Jyotin Kantilal Mehta as its Chairperson. The Committee comprises of the 
following six Directors as on the date of this report: 
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Name of Director Position in the Committee Designation 
Mr. Jyotin Kantilal Mehta Chairperson Independent Director 
Mr. Sameer Bhargava Member Independent Director 
Mr. Shashank Agarwal Member Independent Director 
Ms. Priyanka Gulati Member Independent Director 
Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh Member Nominee Director 
Mr. Sanjay Singhania Member Non-Executive Director 

 
All members of Audit Committee are financially literate and four members have financial 
management expertise.  
 
During the year under review, the Board has accepted all recommendation made by the Audit 
Committee of the Company. 
 
The terms of reference of Audit Committee is enumerated under the “Corporate Governance 
Report” annexed hereto.  
 
b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
Your Company had not constituted Nomination and Remuneration committee during the Fiscal 
year 2022-23. 
 
After the closure of financial year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been 
constituted by the Board at its Meeting held on July 29, 2023. As on date of this report, the 
Committee comprises of 1 (One) Non-executive Director viz. Mr. Sanjay Singhania and 3 (three) 
Independent Directors viz. Mr. Sameer Bhargava, Mr. Jyotin Kantilal Mehta, Ms. Priyanka Gulati. 
Considering the said Committee has been recently constituted, therefore, the relevant 
compliances of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be complied in due course. 
 
As on date of this report, this Committee comprises of the following Directors: 
 

Name of Director Position in the Committee Designation 
Ms. Priyanka Gulati Chairperson Independent Director  
Mr. Sanjay Singhania Member Non-Executive Director  
Mr. Sameer Bhargava Member Independent Director 
Mr. Jyotin Kantilal Mehta Member Independent Director 

 
Till the date of this report, no meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held. 
 
The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is enumerated under the 
“Corporate Governance Report” annexed hereto.  
 
c) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
 
Your Company had not constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee during the Fiscal 
year 2022-23. 
 
After the closure of financial year, your Company has constituted the Corporate Social 
Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee as per provisions u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. This 
Committee looks after the functions as enumerated u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
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As on date of this report, this Committee comprises of the following Directors: 
 

Name of Director Position in the Committee Designation 
Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Chairperson Managing Director & 

CEO 
Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Member Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh Member Nominee Director 
Ms. Priyanka Gulati Member Independent Director 

 
Till the date of this report, no meeting of the CSR Committee was held. 
 
The terms of reference of said Committee is enumerated under the “Corporate Governance 
Report” annexed hereto.  
 
d) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
Your Company had not constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committee during the Fiscal year 
2022-23. 
 
After the closure of financial year, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("SRC”) has been 
constituted by the Board at its Meeting held on July 29, 2023. As on date of this report, the 
Committee comprises of 1 (One) executive Director viz. Mr. Bajrang Bothra and 3 (three) non-
executive Directors viz. Mr. Krishnamachari Narsimhachari, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Vibhav 
Niren Parikh.  
 
As on date of this report, this Committee comprises of the following Directors: 
 

Name of Director Position in the Committee Designation 
Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Chairperson Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Krishnamachari 
Narsimhachari 

Member Independent Director 

Mr. Bajrang Bothra Member Whole Time Director 
Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh Member Nominee Director 

 
The Stakeholder Relationship Committee looks into the redressal of the shareholders complaints 
in respect of any matter including transfer of shares, non -receipt of annual report, non -receipt 
of declared dividend etc. 
 
Till the date of this report, no meeting of the SRC Committee was held. 
 
The terms of reference of said Committee is enumerated under the “Corporate Governance 
Report” annexed hereto. 
 
e) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Your Company had not constituted Risk Management Committee during the Fiscal year 2022-23. 
 
After the closure of financial year, the Risk Management Committee has been constituted by the 
Board at its Meeting held on July 29, 2023. As on date of this report, the Committee comprises of 
2 (Two) Executive Directors viz. Mr. Bajrang Bothra and Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and 4 (Four) Non-
executive Directors viz. Mr. Krishnamachari Narsimhachari, Mr. Kailash Chandra Jain, Mr. Sameer 
Bhargava and Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh and 1 (one) President-Manufacturing & operations. 
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As on date of this report, the Committee comprises of the following members: 
 

Name of Director Position in the Committee Designation 
Mr. Krishnamachari 
Narasimhachari  

Chairperson Independent Director 

Mr. Kailash Jain  Member Independent Director 
Mr. Sameer Bhargava  Member Independent Director 
Mr. Bajrang Bothra Member Whole-time Director 
Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Member Managing Director and 

Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh Member Nominee Director 
Mr. Mohammad Lateef 
Choudhary 

Member President- 
Manufacturing & 
Operations 

 
The Risk Management Committee is responsible for inter-alia, identification of internal and 
external risks, mitigation plans, business continuity plans etc. 
 
Till the date of this report, no meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held. 
 
The terms of reference of said Committee is enumerated under the “Corporate Governance 
Report” annexed hereto. 
 
f) EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  
 
Your Board has constituted the Executive Committee at Board meeting held on May 31, 2023, 
which undertakes matter related to day to day affairs of your Company. The composition of the 
Executive Committee is as follow: 
 

Name of Director Position in the Committee Designation 
Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Member Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Bajrang Bothra Member Whole time Director 
Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Member Managing Director and CEO 
Mr. Sanjay Singhania Member Non-Executive Director 

 
Till the date of this report, no meeting of Executive Committee has been held. 
 
g) IPO COMMITTEE  

 
Your Board has constituted the IPO Committee, at Board meeting held on May 31, 2023, which 
undertakes matter related to Initial Public Offer of your Company. The composition of the IPO 
Committee is as follows: 
 

Name of Director Position in the Committee Designation 
Mr. Bajrang Bothra Chairperson Whole time Director 
Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Member Managing Director and 

CEO 
Mr. Sanjay Singhania Member Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh Member Nominee Director 
Mr. Nikhil Mohta Member Nominee Director 
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Two meetings of IPO Committee has been held during the Fiscal year 2023-24 on August 5, 2023 
and August 11, 2023. 

19. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the Fiscal year 2022-
23, the KMPs of the Company are Mr. Bajrang Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania, Mr. Rajesh Kumar 
Mittal, Mohammad Lateef Choudhary, Mohammad Kaishulla, Mr. Arup Dey, and Mr. Nandkishore 
Shivprasad Khandelwal and there was no change during the financial year under review. 
 
After the closure of Financial Year, the following appointments and resignations were made in 
the KMPs: 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company at their meeting held on May 31, 2023 has appointed Ms. 
Esha Gupta (Membership No.: A23608) as Company Secretary & Compliance officer w.e.f. May 31, 
2023 after resignation of Mr. Rajesh Kumar Mittal from the post of Company Secretary. 
 
Mr. Bajrang Bothra (DIN: 00129286) Chairman of the Company has been appointed as Whole 
Time Director of your Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 13, 2023. 
 
The term of Mr. Ajay DD Singhania (DIN: 00107555) as Managing Director of your Company was 
ratified by the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 13, 2023. 
 
Also, following personnel who were previously designated as KMP of the Company, has been re-
designated as Senior Management with effect from August 7, 2023: 
 
1. Mohammad Lateef Choudhary 
2. Mohammad Kaishulla 
3. Mr. Arup Dey 
4. Mr. Nandkishore Shivprasad Khandelwal 

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)  
Your Company is committed to conduct its business in a socially responsible, ethical and 
environmental friendly manner and to continuously work towards improving quality of life of the 
communities in its operational areas.  
 
The Board of your Company administered the CSR operations during the Fiscal year 2022-23. 
 
Your Company has a duly constituted CSR Committee during the Fiscal year 2023-23, which is 
responsible for fulfilling the CSR objectives of your Company. The composition of CSR committee 
is as stated elsewhere in this report.  

21. CSR POLICY 
The Board of Directors has adopted a CSR policy in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013. The CSR Policy of your Company lays down the philosophy and approach of your Company 
towards its CSR commitment. The CSR policy, inter-alia, deals with the objectives of the 
Company’s CSR initiatives, its guiding principles, thrust areas, responsibilities of the CSR 
Committee, implementation plan and reporting framework. The thrust areas of the Company’s 
CSR activities and some of the key initiatives during the year under review are as under: 
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1. District Fund Foundation 
2. Shree Marwari Databya Aushadhalaya 

 
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities of the Company is enclosed as 
Annexure-II and forms a part of this report. 

22. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY 
The Company has a Vigil Mechanism Policy which provides a vigil mechanism for dealing with 
instances of fraud and mismanagement. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has also been uploaded on 
the website of the Company at www.epackdurable.com. 

23. RISK MANAGEMENT 
While the business risk associated with operating environment, ownership structure, 
Management, System & Policy, the financial risk lies in Asset Quality, Liquidity, Profitability and 
Capital Adequacy. Your company recognizes these risks and makes best effort to mitigate them in 
time and ensure that the Company accepts risks based on the risk appetite of the organisation. 
Risk Management is also an integral part of your Company’s business strategy.  
 
Your Company’s management monitors and manages key financial risk relating to operations by 
analysing exposures by degree and magnitude of risk. The risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, 
interest rate risk and inflation risk. Your Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of our risk management framework. 

24. CREDIT RATING 
Your Company has received a long-term rating of [ICRA] A- (stable) and the short-term rating of 
[ICRA] A2+ from ICRA Limited. 

25. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROLS SYSTEMS AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
Your Company has an adequate system of internal controls commensurate with the nature of its 
business and the size and complexity of its operations. These controls have been designed to 
provide a reasonable assurance over effectiveness and efficiency of operations, prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, safeguarding assets from unauthorised use or losses, compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
timely preparation of reliable financial information. Your Company has an independent internal 
audit function supported by dedicated outsourced teams.  In order to supplement the Internal 
Control process, your Company has engaged the services of M/s Ernst & Young LLP, to function 
as Internal Auditors.  

26. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS  
There has been no significant and material order passed by any regulator, courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and operations of Your Company in future. 

27. ANNUAL RETURN 
The Annual Return of your Company for the FY 2022-23 shall be placed on the website at 
www.epackdurable.com and the Annual Return for the FY 2021-22 is available on the website. 
 
 

http://www.epackdurable.com/
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28. AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
a) Statutory Auditors 
M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells, Chartered Accountants (FRN No- 015125N) were appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of Your Company to hold office from the conclusion of 2nd Annual General 
Meeting until the conclusion of the 7th Annual General Meeting. 
 
b) Statutory Auditors’ Report 
Auditors’ observations are self-explanatory, which do not call for any further clarifications. There 
has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remarks made by the Auditor in their report for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2023. The Auditor’s Report is unmodified i.e. it does not 
contain any qualification.  
 
c) Internal Auditors 
Pursuant to the provision of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 has mandated the 
appointment of Internal Auditor in the Company. Accordingly, M/s Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, were appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2022-23. 
 
d) Cost Audit & Cost Auditors 
In terms of the Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, your Company is required to maintain cost accounting records and get them 
audited every year. Accordingly, such cost records are made, maintained and audited. 
 
The Board of Directors appointed M/s Cheena & Associates, Delhi (Regn. No. 000397) as Cost 
Auditors to audit the cost accounts of Your Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. In terms of 
the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. As per the requirements of the said 
section, remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the shareholders 
at the General Meeting. Accordingly, resolution ratifying the remuneration payable to M/s Cheena 
& Associates forms a part of the Notice convening the 4th Annual General Meeting. 
 
e) Secretarial Auditor & Secretarial Audit Report 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of your Company at 
their meeting held on February 8, 2022 had appointed M/s. Shirin Bhatt & Associates, a 
practicing Company Secretary firm (Firm Registration No. S2011DE162600) to conduct the 
Secretarial Audit of your Company for the financial year 2022 - 23. 
 
The Company has annexed to this Board Report as ANNEXURE-III, the Secretarial Audit Report 
given by the Secretarial Auditor. 
 
The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

29. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) is given in ANNEXURE-IV to this report. 

30. HUMAN RESOURCES 
People remain the most valuable asset of your Company. Your Company follows a policy of 
building strong teams of talented professionals. Your Company continues to build on its 
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capabilities in getting the right talent to support different products and geographies and is taking 
effective steps to retain the talent. It has built an open, transparent culture to nurture this asset. 
 
Your Company recognizes people as its most valuable asset and Your Company has kept a sharp 
focus on Employee Engagement. Your Company’s Human Resources is commensurate with the 
size, nature and operations of Your Company. As on March 31, 2023, your Company had 586 
permanent employees on its payroll and engaged 2644 contract labourers.  
 
Your Company train employees to increase operational performance, improve productivity and 
maintain quality and safety compliance standards. Your Company attach significant importance 
to employees’ health and safety at work as it emphasize that safe business and manufacturing 
measures minimise operational risks. Your Company’s performance management initiatives are 
focused on increasing alignment between individual and organizational goals and taking regular 
feedback to facilitate interaction between new employees and senior management. 
 
Company’s Industrial Relations continued to be harmonious during the period under review. 

31. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT 2013 READ WITH RULES 
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every 
women employee working with Your Company. Your Company always endeavours to create and 
provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual 
harassment. 
 
Your Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The policy 
aims at prevention of harassment of women employees as well as contractors and lays down the 
guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of sexual harassment. .  The Company has 
complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (the 
“ICC”) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and ICC is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual 
harassment and follows the guidelines provided in the policy. 
 
The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review. 

32. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS  

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors or Internal Auditors 
under Section 143(12) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder either to the Audit Committee, the 
Board of Directors or to the Central Government. 

33. CHANGES IN MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION 
Following key changes have been made in the Memorandum of Association of Your Company 
during the financial year 2022-23 and till the date of writing this report: 
 

Date of Shareholders’ 
resolution 

Nature of Amendment 

August 12, 2022 Clause 5 of our Memorandum of Association was amended to 
reflect the increase in the authorised share capital of our 
Company from ₹ 900,000,000, consisting of 70,000,000 equity 
shares of ₹ 10 each and 20,000,000 preference shares of ₹ 10 
each, to ₹ 1,011,000,000, consisting of 70,000,000 equity shares 
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of ₹ 10 each, 20,000,000 preference shares of ₹ 10 each and 
11,100,000 series A preference shares of ₹ 10 each. 

June 13, 2023 
 

Clause 1 of our Memorandum of Association was amended to 
reflect the change in name of our Company from ‘EPACK 
Durable Private Limited’ to ‘EPACK Durable Limited’, pursuant 
to the conversion of our Company to a public limited company. 

June 13, 2023 
 

Clause 5 of our Memorandum of Association was amended to 
reflect the increase in the authorised share capital of our 
Company from ₹ 1,011,000,000, consisting of 70,000,000 equity 
shares of ₹ 10 each, 20,000,000 preference shares of ₹ 10 each 
and 11,100,000 series A preference shares of ₹ 10 each to ₹ 
1,361,000,000, consisting of 105,000,000 equity shares of ₹ 10 
each, 20,000,000 preference shares of ₹ 10 each and 11,100,000 
series A preference shares of ₹ 10 each.  

34. COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARD 
During the financial year under review, your Company has duly complied with all the applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

35. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
In terms of Section 134(5) of the Act, your directors hereby confirm that:  
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures; 

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss 
of the Company for that period; 

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2023, on a going concern basis; 

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and 
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

36. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 
 
The Company is not required to make any disclosure or reporting as there were no application 
made or proceeding pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
 
 
 



37. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME SETTLEMENT
AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the financial year 2022-23, no event has taken place that give rise to reporting of details 
w.r.t. difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions.
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ANNEXURE-I 

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY 
1. PREFACE 

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder 
(the ‘Act’) and Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the ‘Listing Regulations’), 
as amended from time to time, this Policy provides guidance for declaration of dividend 
and its pay-out by the Company. The Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) will consider the 
Policy while declaring / recommending dividend on behalf of the Company. 

 
OBJECTIVE 

The objective of this policy is to maintain guidelines for the Board to follow when declaring 
or recommending the amount of dividend (interim or final) per share.  

 

The Company's Dividend Distribution Policy aims to reward its shareholders by sharing a 
portion of its profits / earnings, while also ensuring that enough funds are retained to 
meet the Company's future needs.  

The Board may consider declaration of dividend depending upon the cash flow situation 
of the Company. The final dividend, as may be recommended by the Board, shall be 
approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

Further, the Board may consider dividend payout ratio keeping in perspective the 
Company’s long term growth strategy, prevailing circumstances. 

2. DEFINITIONS 
i. Act: means the Companies Act, 2013 including the Rules made thereunder, as 

amended from time to time. 
 
ii. Company: means EPACK Durable Limited 
 
iii. Listing regulations: means SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. 
 
iv. Dividend: as defined under Section 2(35) of the Act and includes any Interim 

Dividend 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on August 7, 2023 has adopted 
the Dividend Distribution Policy (the “Policy”) of the Company. 

 
4. PARAMETERS FOR DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION 

The parameters falling within the following categories shall be considered while taking 
decision on dividend distribution. This is an illustrative list of parameters and is not 
exhaustive. 
I. Financial/Internal Parameters: 
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i. Profitable growth of the Company and specifically, profits earned during the 
financial year  

ii. Earning stability and outlook  
iii. Past dividend pattern, if any 
iv. Cash flow position of the Company  
v. Capital expenditure to be incurred by the Company  

vi. Post Dividend EPS   
vii. Accumulated reserves   

viii. Statutory requirements like transfer to statutory reserve fund etc.  
ix. Liquidity position of the company including its working capital requirements and 

debt servicing obligations  
x. Future cash requirements for organic growth/expansion and/or for inorganic 

growth,  
xi. Current and future leverage and, under exceptional circumstances, the amount of 

contingent liabilities 
xii. Deployment of funds in short term marketable investments,  

xiii. Long term investments,  
xiv. Strategic acquisitions and decisions   
xv. Research and development  

xvi. Investment in Group Companies viz. subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates  
xvii. The ratio of debt to equity (at net debt and gross debt level) 

xviii. Any other factor as deemed fit by the Board or as may be required to be 
considered under applicable laws, including: 

 
II. External Parameters 

i. Economic environment 
ii. Changes in the Government policies, industry specific rulings & regulatory 

provisions 
iii. Industry outlook for the future years 
iv. Inflation rate 

 
5. CLASSES OF SHARES 

The above parameters shall apply to all the classes of shares as prescribed under the Act 
subject to the terms of issue of such class of shares. 

 
6. POLICY ON UTILIZATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS 

The Company may utilize the retained earnings for: 
i. Issue of fully paid bonus shares,  

ii. Buy back of shares, restructuring events including mergers and acquisitions,  
iii. General corporate purposes, including contingencies, 
iv. Other general factors specified in this policy and for such other purposes as may 

be statutorily permissible.   
 

7. DECLARATION AND PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND 
 

i. Dividend, other than interim dividend, for a financial year shall be paid after the 
annual financial statements of the Company are finalized and the distributable 
profits is available. 

ii. The declaration and payment of dividend shall be in accordance with the provisions 
of Sections 123 to 128 of the Act. 
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8. CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY MAY NOT 
EXPECT DIVIDEND 

The shareholders of the Company may not expect dividend in the following circumstances, 
subject to the discretion of the Board: 

 
• in case of inadequacy of profits or whenever the Company has incurred losses 

• whenever the Company undertakes or proposes to undertake a significant expansion 
project requiring higher allocation of capital 

• whenever the Company undertakes any acquisitions or joint arrangements requiring 
significant allocation of capital 

• significantly higher working capital requirement affecting free cash flow 

• whenever the Company proposes to utilize surplus cash for buy- back of securities 
or setting off of previous year losses or losses of its subsidiary/ies 

• in case being prohibited to recommend/declare dividend by any regulatory body 

Given the aforementioned uncertainties, prospective or present investors are cautioned 
not to place undue reliance on any of the forward- looking statements in the Policy, if any. 

9. MODIFICATIONS/ DEVIATIONS TO THE POLICY 
The Board of Directors is authorized to approve any modifications/ deviations to the 
Policy and will be the competent authority for any interpretation regarding the Policy.  

10. DISCLAIMER 

The Policy does not constitute a commitment regarding the future dividends of the 
Company, but only represents a general guidance regarding this policy. The statement of 
the Policy does not in any way restrict the right of the Board to use its discretion in the 
recommendation of the dividend to be distributed in the year and the Board reserves the 
right to depart from the Policy as and when circumstances so warrant. 

Given the aforementioned uncertainties, prospective or present investors are cautioned 
not to place undue reliance on any of the forward- looking statements in the Policy. 

 
*************** 
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ANNEXURE-II 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES 
(Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013) 

 
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 
 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee be and is hereby authorized to perform the following functions: 
 

(1) formulate and recommend to the Board, a “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended, monitor the implementation of 
the same from time to time, and make any revisions therein as and when decided by the Board; 

 
(2) identify corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social responsibility policy programmes; 

 
(3) review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a) and the distribution of the same to 

various corporate social responsibility programs undertaken by the Company. The amount spent pursuant to the corporate social 
responsibility policy of the Company shall be, in every financial year, at least 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the 
three immediately preceding financial years;  
 

(4) delegate responsibilities to the corporate social responsibility team and supervise proper execution of all delegated responsibilities; 
 

(5) review and monitor the implementation of corporate social responsibility programmes and issuing necessary directions as required for proper 
implementation and timely completion of corporate social responsibility programmes; 
 

(6) The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan in pursuance of its 
corporate social responsibility policy, which shall include the following: 

 
(i) the list of corporate social responsibility projects or programmes that are approved to be undertaken in areas or subjects specified in 

Schedule VII of the Companies Act;  
(ii) the manner of execution of such projects or programmes as specified in the rules notified under the Companies Act;  
(iii) the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or programmes;  
(iv) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes; and 
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(v) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the Company, and 
 

(7) any other matter as the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board or as may be directed 
by the Board, from time to time; and 
 

(8) exercise such other powers as may be conferred upon the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in terms of the provisions of Section 135 
of the Companies Act. 

 
2. Composition of CSR Committee:  

 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted by a resolution passed by our Board dated July 29, 2023. The current 
constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows:  

 
Name of Director Position in the Committee Designation 

Ajay DD Singhania   Chairperson Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer 

Priyanka Gulati Member Independent Director 
Vibhav Niren Parikh Member Nominee Director 
Laxmi Pat Bothra Member Non-Executive Director 
 

Any change in the composition of the CSR committee will be based on approval of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

Quorum: Any two members of the CSR Committee personally present or via video conferencing, shall form a quorum for the meeting of the CSR 
Committee. 

 
Meetings: The meetings of the CSR Committee shall be held once in every year. Meetings can be convened at such time, at such place and on 
such day, as the members of the CSR Committee may deem fit. The minutes recording the proceedings of the CSR Committee meetings shall be 
placed before the next board meeting of the Company for approval. Provisions relating to conducting board meetings via video conferencing 
shall apply mutatis mutandis to the CSR Committee meetings. 
  

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on 
the website of the Company: http://www.epackdurable.com/investor-relations/ 
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4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule 
(3) of rule 8, if applicable.: Not Applicable 

 
5.  

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs. 1841 Lakh 
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs. 36.83 Lakh 
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or  programmer or activities of the previous financial years: Nil 
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 36.83 Lakh 

 
6.  

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs. 37 Lakh 
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 37 Lakh 
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 
 

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial 
Year. 
(In Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per section 
135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount. Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of transfer 
 

37,00,000/- 
 

Nil 
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(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: 
 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per sub-section (5) of section 135 

36,82,888 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 37,00,000 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 17,112  
(iv) Surplus arising out of  the CSR projects or  programs 

or activities of the previous financial years, if any 
                   Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)] 

17,112 

 
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: 

 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s) 

Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account 

under subsection (6) of 
section 135 

(in Rs.) 

Balance 
Amount in 

Unspent CSR 
Account under 
subsection (6) 

of 
section 135 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Spent 
in the 

Financial 
Year (in Rs) 

Amount transferred to a Fund as 
specified under 

Schedule VII as per second proviso 
to subsection (5) of section 135, if 

any 

Amount 
remaining to 

be 
spent in 

succeeding 
Financial 

Years 
(in Rs) 

Deficiency, if 
any 

Name of the Fund 
Amount (in Rs.) 

Date of transfer. 

1 F.Y.-1  
NIL 2 F.Y.-2 

3 F.Y.-3 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No 

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: N.A. 



Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial 
Year: N.A. 

SI. Short particulars of Pincode Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of 
No. the property or of the creation ofCSR the registered owner 

asset(s) [including property amount 
complete address or spent 
and location of the asset(s) 

orooertvl 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

CSR Registration Name Registered 
Number, if address 
aoolicable 

N.A. 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135: N.A.

Place: Greater Noida 

Date: September 06, 2023 
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

EPAC�re Limited

""? 1#14.- �e,,C"l> 
Bajrang Bothra e,,."t1': D Singhania

. . Chairperson of CSR Whole-Time Director Committee, MD & CEO 
DlN:00129286 DIN:00107555 
8-114, Sector 40, Gautam
Buddha Nagar, Noida, 
Uttar Pradesh-201301 

D-145, Sector-47, Gautam
Buddha Nagar, Noida, 
Uttar Pradesh-201301 
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SHIRIN BHATT & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries

Address: 1596 & 1597, 14th Floor, Sector 4 

Gaur City Mall (Office Space) 

Greater Naida (West)U.P.-201301 

Mob.: +91-8010501209, 8447888828 

Tel.: 0120-48089980 Email: office@shirinbhatt.com 

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 315r, 2023 

{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014} 

To, 

The Members, 

EPACK DURABLE LIMITED 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by EPACK DURABLE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS 

EPACK DURABLES SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED and EPACK DURABLE PRIVATE LIMITED) 

(hereinafter called the "Company"). During the Financial Year ended March 31st, 2023 the 

Company was a private limited company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing our opinion thereon. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

1. The responsibility of the Auditor is only to express opinion on the compliance with the

applicable laws and maintenance of records based on the evidences collected, information

received and Records maintained by the Auditee or given by the Management.

2. The audit was conducted in accordance with applicable standards issued by the Institute of

Company Secretaries of India (the "Standards") and the Standards require that we comply

with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of Records.

Accordingly, we have obtained reasonable assurance about whether the statements

prepared, documents or Records maintained by the Auditee are free from misstatement.

3. Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls,

there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not

be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with

the Standards.

Our Opinion 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 

the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder except as disclosed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made hereinafter: 

Annexure-III









Annexure-A 

To, 
The Members 
EPACK DURABLE LIMITED 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
compliances of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Place: Greater Noida 
Date: 06-09-2023 
UDIN: F008273E000960906 

For Shirin Bhatt & Associates

Company Secretaries 
Firm Registration No. S2011DE162600 

:v ,
'-

�� 

rin Bhatt 

% Proprietor 
:on Y C.P. No. 9150 

M.No. F8273
PR No. 1209/2021 



Annual Report FY 2022-2023- EPACK Durable Limited 

ANNEXURE-IV 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Your Company has taken various steps to implement an environmental and social management 
system to adopt a systematic approach towards identifying, managing, monitoring, and reporting 
on environmental and social issues. Your Company has also installed rooftop solar power plants 
at its Bhiwadi Manufacturing Facility to help reduce dependence on state power grids at the 
facility.  

In alignment with your Company’s ESG ethos, your Company also endeavour to ensure that (i) 
your Company do not employ or make use of forced labour or child labour, (ii) your Company pay 
wages which meet industry and legal minimum wage requirements, (iii) your Company do not 
discriminate in terms of compensation, training, opportunities and employee benefits, on the 
basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements, including caste, creed, 
religion, language, ethnicity, disability, age, gender, sexual orientation, race, colour, marital status 
or union organization or any other status protected by appropriate laws, and (iv) your Company 
provide reasonable working conditions including a safe and healthy work environment, and 
clearly documented terms of employment as defined / required under applicable labour laws and 
guidelines. Your Company has implemented a grievance mechanism that is available to all its 
workers and maintain periodic records of grievance redressal. Your Company also have a zero 
tolerance policy towards malpractices such as bribery, corruption, and fraud in our business. 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

In the pursuit of continual improvement in energy conservation, many initiatives as listed below 
have been taken in the financial year 2022-2023 for energy conservation and preservation of 
natural resources: 

• Installed 266 kw solar on grid and solar inverter.
• Electricity Saving through VFD Installation at Air Compressor.
• Hydro pneumatic VFD System on cooling tower water pumps to optimize the continual

operation of motor and save the energy
• Machine / Section wise energy meter installation and monitoring on daily basis for analysis

to control the consumption
• Electric Fired Oven in CFF Shop to save electric energy
• Internal transportation through Eco friendly vehicle
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(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy; By solar
inverter, your Company is utilizing an alternate source of energy (solar energy). 

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment; Rs. 1,85,99,976/-

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION-

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:
• Hydro pneumatic VFD System on cooling tower water pumps to optimize the 

continual operation of the motor.
• Electric Fired Oven in CFF Shop.
• VFD Installation at Air Compressor.

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 
development, or import substitution: With the help of energy conservation techniques your 
Company reduced electricity costs and enhance equipment health.

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 
from the beginning of the financial year)- N.A.

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Rs. 3,49,82,023/-
(including salaries of R&D employees)

Programs for improving energy efficiency 

• Thrust on zero waste to land fill and circular economy.
• Thrust on use of renewable energy in manufacturing units.
• Use of natural lighting and natural ventilation.
• Encouraging go green initiative in the plants.
• Rain water harvesting, reduce usage and recycling of water.
• Section wise energy meter installation and monitoring on daily basis to control the

consumption.

Our Company is committed towards technology driven innovation and lays strong emphasis on 
inculcating an innovation driven culture within the organization. 

During the financial year under review, your Company continued to work on technology up 
gradation and capability development in the critical areas of better star rating (energy efficiency), 
low power consumption and lesser global warming (environment friendly). 



Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 

The Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo during the year are as follows: 

S.NO. Particular Amount in Rs. 
Lakhs 

1 Foreign Exchange earned in terms of 2,084.14 
. 

actual inflows during the year 

2 Foreign Exchange outgo during the year 58,852.50 

in terms of actual outflows 

For EPACK Durable Limited 

Place: Greater Noida

Date: September 06, 2023 

Chairman 

B-114, Sector 40, Gautam

Buddha Nagar, Noida,

Uttar Pradesh-201301
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

The Company believes that sound corporate governance is a key element for enhancing and 
retaining the trust of investors and various other stakeholders. As a responsible corporate citizen 
your Company has evolved best practices which are structured to institutionalize policies and 
procedures that enhance the efficacy of the Board and inculcate a culture of accountability, 
transparency and integrity across the organization. 

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

I. Composition of Board

Your Company endeavors to have judicious mix of executive, non-executive and independent 
director, so as to have independence on the Board. As on date of this report, your Company has a 
Women Director on the Board, which brings diversity on the Board. 

As on 31st March, 2023, the Board comprised of 7 (Seven) directors which includes 4 (Four) Non-
Executive Directors and 3 (Three) Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Board is the 
Executive Promoter Director of the Company. The details of composition of the Board as on 31st 
March, 2023 is provided in Directors’ Report under section “Board of Directors, its Committees 
and Meetings thereof”. Also, after the end of the Financial Year, one of the Executive Director- 
Mohammad Lateef Choudhary had resigned from Directorship with effect from May 31, 2023.   

As on date of this report, the Board comprises of 12 (Twelve) Directors which includes 2 (Two) 
Executive Directors, 4 (Four) Non- Executive Directors and 6 (Six) Independent Directors. 

Mr. Bajrang Bothra and Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra are brothers & Mr. Sanjay Singhania and Mr. Ajay 
DD Singhania are brothers, except that none of the Directors are related to the other Directors, or 
to any other employee of the Company.  

None of the Independent Directors hold any shares and convertible instruments in the Company. 

The details of the composition of Board and KMP forms part of Directors’ Report under the 
Section “Board of Directors, its Committees and Meetings thereof”.  

The Company follows a structured process of decision-making by the Board and its Committees. 
There is a well-organized system for seeking Board approval which facilitates and provides room 
for sound decision making by the Board and its Committees. The detailed agenda along with all 
explanatory statements and reports are circulated to the Board in advance. Provisions of 
Secretarial Standards on Board and General Meetings have been complied by the Company.  If 
required, the Board also approves resolutions by way of circulation between two successive 
Board Meetings. 

II. Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration paid to your Directors in Fiscal 2022-23 are as follows: 

1. Remuneration to Executive Directors:

The details of total remuneration paid by our Company to your Executive Directors for 
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Fiscal 2023 and the current Fiscal are as follows: 
  

Name of Director Designation Fiscal 2023 (Rs. in 
lakhs) 

Ajay DD Singhania Managing Director & 
CEO 

87.10 

*Mohammad Lateef Choudhary Executive Director 51.84 
TOTAL 138.94 

*Resigned with effect from May 31, 2023 
 
No remuneration is paid or payable by our Subsidiary and Associate, to your Directors.  
 
2. Non-Executive Directors:  

No Sitting fees and other payments have been made to our Non-Executive Directors in 
Fiscal 2023. 

 
III. Attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meetings 
 
The agenda and Notice for the meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. 
The Board of Directors of your Company met Twelve (12) times during the financial year 2022-
23: 
 
1. April 26, 2022 
2. May 25, 2022 
3. August 12, 2022 
4. August 31, 2022 
5. September 7, 2022 
6. September 9, 2022 
7. October 21, 2022 
8. November 4, 2022 
9. November 25, 2022 
10. December 6, 2022 
11. February 8, 2023 
12. March 30, 2023 
 
Details of attendance of Directors at Board meetings and Annual General meeting of the Company, 
during the Fiscal year 2022-23, are as follows:  
 

Name of the Director Designation Nos. of meetings 
attended 

Presence at last AGM 

Mr. Bajrang Bothra Executive Chairman 7 out of 12 No 
Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Managing Director 11 out of 12 Yes 
Mr. Sanjay Singhania Director 9 out of 12 No 
Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Director 5 out of 12 No 
*Mohammad Lateef 
Choudhary 

Director 11 out of 12 No 

Mr. Nikhil Mohta  Nominee Director 12 out of 12 No 
*Mr. Vibhav Niren 
Parikh 

Nominee Director 7 out of 7 No 
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* Mohammad Lateef Choudhary has resigned from the post of directorship of Your Company w.e.f. 
May 31, 2023. Mr. Vibhav Niren Parikh has been appointed as Nominee Director of the Company 
w.e.f. September 07, 2022. 
 
The necessary quorum was present in all the meetings. The intervening gap between any two 
meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as prescribed by the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 
IV. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 

A. Audit Committee 
 
The Composition of Audit Committee along with its re-constitution details are provided in 
Directors’ Report under Section “Board of Directors, its Committees and Meetings thereof”. 
 
The Audit Committee met 8 (Eight) times during the financial year 2022-23 on the following 
dates: 
 

1. April 28, 2022 
2. May 25, 2022 
3. August 12, 2022 
4. September 07, 2022 
5. November 04, 2022 
6. December 06, 2022 
7. February 08, 2023 
8. March 30, 2023 

 
Name of the 
Director 

Designation Nos. of 
meetings 
attended 

Mr. Bajrang Bothra Chairman 7 out of 8 
Mr. Ajay DD Singhania Member 4 out of 4 
Mr. Nikhil Mohta  Member 8 out of 8 
Mr. Vibhav Niren 
Parikh* 

Member 4 out of 4 

* The Audit Committee was reconstituted to include Mr. Vibhav Niren Parekh on September 7, 
2022 

 
Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee: 
The Audit Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be required by the 
stock exchange(s) from time to time, the following, in supersession of the previous terms of 
reference of the Audit Committee: 
 
Powers of Audit Committee  
 
The Audit Committee shall have powers, including the following:  
 
(1) to investigate any activity within its terms of reference;  
 
(2) to seek information from any employee;  
 
(3) to obtain outside legal or other professional advice;  
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(4) to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary and to 

seek their advice, whenever required; and  
 
(5) such other powers as may be prescribed under the Companies Act and SEBI Listing 

Regulations.  
 
Role of Audit Committee 
 
The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following: 
 
(1) oversight of financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information relating 

to EPACK Durable Limited (the “Company”) to ensure that the financial statements are 
correct, sufficient and credible; 
 

(2) recommendation for appointment, re-appointment, replacement, remuneration and terms 
of appointment of auditors, including the internal auditor, cost auditor and statutory auditor 
of the Company and the fixation of the audit fee; 

(3) approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors; 

(4) formulation of a policy on related party transactions, which shall include materiality of 
related party transactions; 
 

(5) reviewing, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of related party transactions entered into 
by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approvals given; 

 
(6) examining and reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and 

auditor's report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular 
reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included 
in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 
 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 
management 
 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and 
 

g. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report. 

(7) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements 
before submission to the Board for approval; 
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(8) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through 
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 
purposes other than those stated in the Offer document / prospectus / notice and the report 
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or 
rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or “Board of 
Directors”) to take up steps in this matter; 

(9) reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness 
of audit process; 

(10) approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties 
and omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the 
Company, subject to the conditions as may be prescribed; 

Explanation: The term "related party transactions" shall have the same meaning as provided 
in Clause 2(zc) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and/or the Companies Act, 2013. 

(11) approval of Related party transaction to which the subsidiary is a party;  

(12) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

(13) valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, and appointing a registered valuer in 
terms of Section 247 of the Companies Act, wherever it is necessary; 

(14) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

(15) reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy 
of the internal control systems; 

(16) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

(17) discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

(18) reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 

(19) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope 
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

(20) recommending to the board of directors the appointment and removal of the external 
auditor, fixation of audit fees and approval for payment for any other services; 

(21) looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

(22) reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 

(23) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 
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(24) overseeing the vigil mechanism established by the Company, with the chairperson of the 
Audit Committee directly hearing grievances of victimization of employees and directors, 
who used vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns in appropriate and exceptional cases; 

(25) approval of appointment of chief financial officer (i.e., the whole-time finance Director or any 
other person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the 
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

(26) reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment by the holding company 
in the subsidiary exceeding ₹ 1,000,000,000 or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, 
whichever is lower including existing loans/ advances/ investments existing as on the date 
of coming into force of this provision; 

(27) To formulate, review and make recommendations to the Board to amend the Terms of 
Reference of Audit Committee from time to time; 

(28) consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, 
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the Company and its shareholders; 

(29) approving the key performance indicators for disclosure in its offering documents; 

(30) reviewing compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended, at least once in a financial 
year and shall verify that the systems for internal control under the said regulations are 
adequate and are operating effectively; 

(31) carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Audit Committee as 
contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013, uniform listing agreements 
and/or any other applicable law, as and when amended from time to time; and 

(32) To make available its terms of reference and review periodically those terms of reference 
and its own effectiveness and recommend any necessary changes to the Board. 

(33) The aforesaid shall be governed by the applicable provisions/limits/threshold provided in 
SEBI Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. 

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
The details of constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are provided in Board 
Report under Section “Board of Directors, its Committees and Meetings thereof”. 
 
Terms of Reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, the 
following: 
 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director and recommend to the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or “Board of 
Directors”) a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees (“Remuneration Policy”). 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above policy, should 
ensure that: 
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i. the level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate directors of the quality required to run our Company successfully; 
ii. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; and 
iii. remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a 

balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

2. For every appointment of an independent director, evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge 
and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, preparing a description of the 
role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board 
for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such 
description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee may: (a) use the services of an external agencies, if required; (b) 
consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and (c) 
consider the time commitments of the candidates;  
 

3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board; 

4. Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

5. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal and carrying out evaluation of every director’s performance (including 
independent director); 
 

6. Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters; 
 

7. Deciding whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on 
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 
 

8. Determining the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors 
including pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration 
packages of such directors;  
 

9. Recommending to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to non-executive 
directors and the senior management and other employees, as may be deemed necessary;  
 

10. Carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee as contained in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended or any other applicable law, as and 
when amended from time to time;  
 

11. Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021, if applicable;  
 

12. Construing and interpreting the employee stock option scheme/plan approved by the Board and 
shareholders of the Company in accordance with the terms of such scheme/plan (“ESOP Scheme”) 
and any agreements defining the rights and obligations of the Company and eligible employees 
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under the ESOP Scheme, and prescribing, amending and/or rescinding rules and regulations 
relating to the administration of the ESOP Scheme;  
 

13. Administering the ESOP Scheme including the following:  
 

i. To decide upon re-granting of options which were lapsed, forfeited or surrendered under 
any provisions of the Scheme.  

ii. To decrease the quantum/pool of options to be granted under scheme.  
iii. To decrease the quantum/pool of shares to be issued under scheme.  
iv. To identify the employees eligible to participate under the scheme.  
v. To finalize the eligibility criteria for grant of options.  

vi. To determine the employees eligible for grant of options.  
vii. To decide upon granting of options to new joinees.  

viii. To determine the grant date  
ix. To grant options to one or more eligible employees.  
x. To determine the number of options to be granted to each grantee and in aggregate subject 

to the pool of options of the scheme.  
xi. To determine the conditions under which the options may vest in the employees and may 

lapse in case of termination of employment for misconduct.  
xii. To decide the exercise period within which employees can exercise the option.  

xiii. To decide the specified time period within which employees can exercise the vested options 
in the event of termination or resignation.  

xiv. To determine the grant, vesting and exercise of options for employees on long leave.  
xv. To extend the period of acceptance of grant.  

xvi. To decide the vesting period subject to minimum and maximum period of vesting as stated in 
scheme.  

xvii. To determine the vesting schedule for each grantee.  
xviii. To finalize the eligibility criteria for vesting of options.  

xix. To determine the employees eligible for vesting of options.  
xx. To determine the method for exercising the vested options.  

xxi. To determine the procedure for funding the exercise of options.  
xxii. To determine the right of an employee to exercise all vested options at one time or at various 

points in time within the exercise period.  
xxiii. To determine the exercise price of the options to be granted after giving due discount or 

charging such premium, if deems fit.  
xxiv. To allot shares to grantees upon exercise.  
xxv. To decide upon treatment of vested and unvested options in cases of cessation of employment 

as specified in the scheme.  
xxvi. To decide upon the treatment of vested and unvested options in the event of corporate actions 

taking into consideration the following:  
A. The number and price of options shall be adjusted in a manner such that the total value 

to the grantee of the options remains the same after the corporate action;  
B. The vesting period and the life of options shall be left unaltered as far as possible to 

protect the rights of the grantee who has been granted such options.  
xxvii. To cancel all or any granted options in accordance with the scheme.  

xxviii. To appoint such agents as it shall deem necessary for the proper administration of the 
scheme.  

xxix. To determine or impose other conditions to the grant of options under the scheme, as it may 
deem appropriate.  

xxx. To frame suitable policies and procedure to ensure that there is no violation of securities laws, 
including the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the SEBI 
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(Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices Relating to the Securities Market) 
Regulations, 2003 as amended, by the company or the employees.  

xxxi. To determine the procedure for buy-back of options granted under the scheme, if to be 
undertaken at any time by the company, and the applicable terms and conditions including 
the permissible sources of financing for buy-back, any minimum financial thresholds to be 
maintained by the company as per its last financial statements and the limits upon quantum 
of specified securities that the company may buy-back in a financial year. For the purpose of 
this clause specified securities shall have the meaning ascribed to it under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018. 

xxxii. To determine the terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the scheme, of any 
option granted hereunder. 

xxxiii. To approve forms or agreements for use under the scheme. 
xxxiv. To decide all other matters that must be determined in connection with an option under the 

scheme. 
xxxv. To frame terms & conditions, prescribe forms, notices and issue circulars or orders in relation 

to the Scheme and may from time to time amend, recall or replace such terms & conditions, 
forms, notices, orders and circulars. 

 
14. Specifying the manner for effective evaluation of performance of the Board and independent 

directors to be carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee; and  
 

15. Perform such other activities as may be delegated by the Board or specified/ provided under the 
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent notified and effective, as amended or by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended or by any other applicable law or regulatory authority.  
 

C. Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
 
The details of constitution of Stakeholder Relationship Committee are provided in Board Report 
under Section “Board of Directors, its Committees and Meetings thereof”. 
 
Terms of Reference for the Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may 
be required by the under applicable law, the following: 
 
1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints 

related to transfer/transmission of shares or debentures, including non-receipt of share or 
debenture certificates and review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of shares and 
debentures, non-receipt of annual report or balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, 
issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. and assisting with quarterly 
reporting of such complaints and formulating procedures in line with statutory guidelines to 
ensure speedy disposal of various requests received from shareholders;  

 
2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders; 

 
3. Investigating complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or transmission 

of shares, debentures or any other securities; 
 

4. Giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares and debentures, dematerialisation of 
shares and re-materialisation of shares, split and issue of duplicate/consolidated share 



Annual Report FY 2022-2023- EPACK Durable Limited 

certificates, compliance with all the requirements related to shares, debentures and other 
securities from time to time, to the extent required under applicable laws; 

5. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various 
services being rendered by the registrar and share transfer agent of the Company and to
recommend measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services;

6. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company;

7. To approve allotment of shares, debentures or any other securities as per the authority
conferred / to be conferred to the Committee by the Board of Directors from time to time;

8. To approve requests for transfer, transposition, deletion, consolidation, sub-division, change
of name, dematerialization, rematerialisation etc. of shares, debentures and other securities;

9. To monitor and expedite the status and process of dematerialization and rematerialisation of
shares, debentures and other securities of the Company;

10. Carrying out such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time or
specified/provided under the Companies Act or SEBI Listing Regulations, or by any other
regulatory authority; and

11. Such terms of reference as may be prescribed under the Companies Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations.

D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The details of constitution of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are provided in Board 
Report under Section “Board of Directors, its Committees and Meetings thereof”. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is authorized to perform the following functions: 

a) formulate and recommend to the Board, a “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” which shall 
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended, monitor the
implementation of the same from time to time, and make any revisions therein as and when
decided by the Board;

b) identify corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social responsibility
policy programmes;

c) review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred
to in clause (a) and the distribution of the same to various corporate social responsibility
programs undertaken by the Company. The amount spent pursuant to the corporate social
responsibility policy of the Company shall be, in every financial year, at least 2% of the
average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial
years;

d) delegate responsibilities to the corporate social responsibility team and supervise proper
execution of all delegated responsibilities;
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e) review and monitor the implementation of corporate social responsibility programmes and
issuing necessary directions as required for proper implementation and timely completion of
corporate social responsibility programmes;

f) The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall formulate and recommend to the Board, 
an annual action plan in pursuance of its corporate social responsibility policy, which shall
include the following:

i. the list of corporate social responsibility projects or programmes that are approved to be
undertaken in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act;

ii. the manner of execution of such projects or programmes as specified in the rules notified
under the Companies Act;

iii. the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or
programmes;

iv. monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes; and

v. details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the
Company, and

g) any other matter as the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee may deem
appropriate after approval of the Board or as may be directed by the Board, from time to
time; and

h) exercise such other powers as may be conferred upon the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act.

i) Provided that Board may alter such plan at any time during the financial year, as per the
recommendation of its CSR Committee, based on the reasonable justification to that effect.

E. Risk Management Committee

The details of constitution of Risk Management Committee are provided in Board Report under 
Section “Board of Directors, its Committees and Meetings thereof”. 

Terms of Reference for the Risk Management Committee 

The Risk Management Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be 
required under applicable law, the following: 

(1) To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

(a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the
Company, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly,
ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined
by the Risk Management Committee.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks.
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(c) Business continuity plan.

(2) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

(3) To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems;

(4) To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

(5) To keep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

(6) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall
be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee;

(7) The Risk Management committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees, in
instances where there is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the
framework laid down by the Board of Directors;

(8) The Risk Management committee shall have powers to seek information from any employee, 
obtain outside legal or other professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with
relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; and

(9) Perform such other activities as may be delegated by the Board or specified provided under
the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended or under any other applicable law or by any
regulatory authority.

B. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting is scheduled to be held on Saturday, September 30,
2023, at 11:00 A.M at Registered office of the Company. The details in respect of last three Annual
General Meetings are given in table below.

Financial 
Year 

Venue Date Time 

2019-20 Registered office December 30, 2020 11.00 a.m. 
2020-21 Registered office November 26, 2021 12.00 p.m. 
2021-22 Registered office December 29, 2022 03.15 p.m. 

No special resolutions have been passed at the last three Annual General Meetings. 

C. RESOLUTIONS PASSED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT

No resolutions have been passed by the Company through Postal Ballot during the last three
financial years.

D. VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy which provides a vigil mechanism for dealing with
instances of fraud and mismanagement. The Whistle Blower Policy has also been uploaded on the 
website of the Company at www.epackdurable.com.

http://www.epackdurable.com/
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E. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details with regard to Related Party Transactions are provided in the Directors’ Report under 
the section “Related Party Transaction”.

F. DESIGNATED & EXCLUSIVE EMAIL-IDS

The Company has designated the following email ids exclusively for investor servicing. All
investors or other stakeholders may lodge their queries with the Company at
investors_ed@epack.in.

G. ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

i. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Date: September 30, 2023
Time: 11:00 A.M.
Venue: Registered Office: 61-B, Udyog Vihar, Surajpur, Kasna Road, Greater Noida,
Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh- 201306

ii. FINANCIAL YEAR: 1st April to 31st March

iii. FINAL DIVIDEND: The Board of Directors of the Company have not recommended any
final dividend for the financial year 2022-23.

iv. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND: No amount of unclaimed dividend is lying in the accounts of the
Company as on date of this report

v. MANUFACTURING FACILITIES:

The Company’s manufacturing locations are situated at:
1. Dehradun, Uttarakhand
2. Bhiwadi, Rajasthan

vi. ADDRESS FOR INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
KFIN Technologies Private Limited
The Centrium (Phoenix Market City)
3rd Floor, Lal Bahadur Shastri Road,
Nav Pada Kurla (West)
Mumbai 400070

Or

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Esha Gupta
61-B, Udyog Vihar, Surajpur, Kasna Road, Greater Noida
Gautam Buddha Nagar, UP 201306

vii. REGISTERED OFFICE:
EPACK Durable Limited
61-B, Udyog Vihar, Surajpur, Kasna Road, Greater Noida
Gautam Buddha Nagar, UP 201306

mailto:investors_ed@epack.in
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